City Council CIP Workshop Meeting
Meeting Minutes
January 13, 2025

CALL TO ORDER

The City Council CIP Workshop Meeting of the City of Montgomery was called to order by Mayor
Countryman at 5:01 p.m. on January 13, 2025, at City Hall 101 Old Plantersville Rd.,
Montgomery, TX and live video streaming.

With Council Members present a quorum was established.

Present: Mayor Sara Countryman
Mayor Pro-Tem Casey Olson
Council Member Place 1 Carol Langley
Council Member Place 4 Cheryl Fox
Council Member Place 5 Stan Donaldson

Also Present: Chief Anthony Solomon, Interim City Administrator
Corinne Tilley, Code Enforcement/Planning & Zoning Administrator
Ruby Beaven, City Secretary
Diana Titus, Deputy City Secretary
Chris Roznovsky, City Engineer, WGA

OPENING AGENDA

1. Call Meeting to Order.

PUBLIC FORUM

No participants at this time.

WORKSHOP AGENDA

2. Discussion on current, future, and upcoming capital improvement projects.

Mr. Roznovsky, City Engineer, WGA, stated there are a handful of things to talk about tonight
and a lot of this you have seen before. These are updates, additional pieces and then ultimately
leaving here with things to think about, things to consider in some direction on what you want
to see on how to move forward.

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 24



We are going to run through our project list. It is the same one that you have seen before. We
will highlight the changes and highlight the updates on where some of these stand.

At 5:02 p.m. Council Member Fox arrived at the meeting.

Mr. Roznovsky continued saying we are going to talk about your impact fees, what we expect
to collect come up, and that what has been collected thus far. Then finally, we are going to
wrap it up and talk about funding options and water and sewer rates. Stop me as we go, and
we will go through it again. There are no decisions or action tonight. This is a workshop. The
intent of this is to start thinking through this and then give some direction on what additional
information is needed and how to make decisions on these projects moving forward.

Mr. Roznovsky said there are three documents in front of you. If you go to the one that is on
the 11 x 17 size, this is that project with the same format that you have seen before. | am going
to run through not every item on here but hit the highlights of what are the priority items, what
changes have occurred, and what is new to the list that is potential for this. Stop me if you have
questions, as | go through this.

The water plant number two improvements project is ongoing as you know as we have just
talked about it and the noise coming from it. One thing | want to note there is when this project
was bid, it was bid with an alternate or a supplementary item for replacing the tank foundation
so that is included in the contract amount. We were hopeful that once they took the tank down
they could see the foundation and it would be in good condition. When they took the tank down
it was cracked all the way through. They are replacing that so there won't be a deduction change
order for not replacing the foundation to that project. He said that was roughly $85,000.

The water plant four improvements is the new water plant with an elevated storage tank. We
have talked about that one before so the cost you see there is the construction and engineering
contingencies.

The FM 1097 sewer replacement project contract is already out. That contractor should be
mobilizing this week to knock that out over on FM 1097.

The water plant number four project has been RFQ’d and we have responses from engineers
that just scored, but we wanted to get through the funding discussion to talk about the funding
of the balance and construction before we brought a recommendation to move forward with
awarding that project.

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 24



The one project on the list, the Plez Morgan erosion repairs, there has been nothing started on
that as of yet. It is right at Plez Morgan where the creek is eroded up to it that definitely needs
to be done.

We have talked about the Town Creek wastewater plant. It is not on your agenda for tomorrow
but on your next council meeting we do have the proposal from Halff and Associates for
approval. Our original estimate on design two years ago was around $600,000. It came in at
$720,000 which is higher than the estimate it was two years ago. We feel like it is a reasonable
number, higher than expected, but a reasonable number that we at a future Council meeting
will be recommending approval of that contract with Halff and Associates.

Both the College Street drainage and booster pump number three are the ARPA funded projects
that you did the resolution for not too long ago. On your Council tomorrow night, it is
authorizing us to get started putting together bid packages for both of those items and those
items are listed on here.

Finally, this last one on this section, is the Westway Drive waterline upsizing. The timing of
this one is to be determined. This is the Tri Pointe development from Westway Drive to Lone
Star Parkway in that middle section. Part of their agreement is they are upsizing the waterline.
As you have done for Town Creek Crossing, you pay the cost difference. They needed eight
(8) and they are going to put in 12 so you will pay just the cost difference in that. It’1l likely
move to next year, but it is on the list so we are planning for it.

Council Member Fox said she was going to ask about the College Street drainage improvement
program and sees that is the 233. She asked if that was permanent. Mr. Roznovsky said that is
correct. What it includes is digging up what is there and replacing three (3) culverts with new
concrete culverts and rebedding new guard rails and then repairing the road. He does not
remember the exact dimensions but maybe 100 feet each way or maybe a total of 100 feet, as
well as working backs on the north side of College east of those culverts is regrading the ditch
and replacing those culverts along the way to get down to it. Council Member Fox said she
wanted to make sure it was a permanent fix because it did seem like it was not as expensive as
she thought it would be. Mr. Roznovsky said the culverts themselves are not that big. It is three
(3) 18-inch culverts which are not a large cost item. The biggest thing we have to work through
is access. Our main concern on that project is replacing those while not cutting off the end of
the Street and we are working through some options. Likely what we are going to do is put
additional requirements in the contract that they have to have temporary matting and so at the
end of each day they put it back down so access is still there and during the day they have the
ability to quickly allow access. He thinks that it is going to drive up the cost a little bit, and
also with it being ARPA funds. Council Member Fox asked wasn’t there going to be a traffic
study on that road for a future subdivision? Mr. Roznovsky said yes. He cannot remember what

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 24



they were calling it, but essentially over here across the street that was the Grace Point
development, the Village of Montgomery. Yes, they were going to do a traffic study because
they had a road connecting from the end of College over to FM 149. What is the potential
impact of this development on the road, but that development is not moving forward. Mayor
Countryman said she asked about that road recently and they have abandoned that. They are
only looking at extending Caroline, at this time. That is not the end all be all, just that is where
they are today. Council Member Fox said she just wants to make sure this was a permanent
thing. Mayor Countryman asked of all of these and number one (1), nothing else is ARPA
outside of the College Street, is that right? Mr. Roznovsky said and booster pump number three
(3). Mayor Countryman asked have we already budgeted for all of the water plant to FM 1097
sewer? Mr. Roznovsky said yes. Water line number two (2) and FM 1097 sewer and the design
of the wastewater plant, those were in your current Certificate of Obligation (CO) projects.
There is a little bit of a delta there after all the cost differences that we have talked about and
you have $681,000 sitting in your impact fee account that can be used for those projects. Mayor
Countryman asked if the water plant two improvements was the $3.2 million that they
borrowed on that bond? Mr. Roznovsky said that is correct. Mayor Countryman said she is just
curious as to where they are going to get the delta. Mr. Roznovsky said correct. If you actually
look over on that there is four (4) tables off to the right hand side of the bottom one which is
your fund summary and that is the original $3.5 million. You have used up the $1.33 million,
with $2.1 million remaining from those other projects. Mr. Roznovsky said going one (1) item
down these are the projects that are ongoing and they have to be done. The Westway Drive
one is the smallest item on the list but that is obviously developer driven and timeline
dependent on when that gets complete.

Moving over to the second priority projects, the first and last one were the citywide

drainage assessments. This was looking at the culvert repairs, ditch cleanouts all throughout
the city and putting it in one bit package to reestablish grades. Nothing has gone forward with
that project. This was on the lower priority list but that is what those are.

Mr. Roznovsky said the one that he does want to ask a little bit with you all and engage interest
in is the Stanley Lake mud interconnect. Stanley Lake is a municipal utility next door. They
serve the strip center and apartment complex. We have been working back and forth with them
on the idea of an emergency interconnect so we can connect our water lines in the event of a
loss of pressure. We can open-up the internet connect and use them to help provide service to
the City, since we are on an island by ourselves. We have been talking through with them, and
they are open to the concept. If you remember a few years ago the Nantucket development
which was the apartment complex, behind Pizza Shack, they don't have a timeline for moving
forward as they are still evaluating options. However, they are interested in proceeding with
the water line to get to their tract. What we have in the breakdown that is shown here is a split
of that cost. We went through and said obviously larger projects are cheaper than smaller

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 24



projects and we are able to pro rate some of this cost with the developer, which will make more
sense. We have not run the numbers by the developer but just in general conversations and he
was open to the concept. If you did it you are looking at approximately $75,000 for the City
and then $200,000 to $260,000 for the developer to pay because he has a much more substantial
piece and length. Then you would split the engineering prorated between the two so you could
overall save cost, if that is something you are interested in. We think it is a good idea especially
if the developer agrees to a $75,000 investment to have an alternate water source in case of
emergency. He thinks it is well worth the investment to do and thinks Mr. Muckleroy would
agree on that one, that it would be a good one to pursue if we can fit it into the overall budget.
Mr. Muckleroy said we went into this hoping we would end up with maybe a 50/50 split with
Stanley Lake. This scenario works out even better. Stanley Lake is not interested in
participating in the cost at all. That is the only downfall. The timing is right with this developer
if it works out like this.

Mayor Countryman questioned Mr. Roznovsky. She said he mentioned it is an alternate water
source and asked if it is vice versa, so if we need water we can buy it from them and if they
need water they can buy it from us? Mr. Roznovsky said correct. Both entities have the ability.
Mayor Countryman said she just wants to make sure it was a two-way street and not a one way.
Mr. Roznovsky said both have the ability to say no. If we are in an emergency, they can not
just take the water. Both entities have to agree on how a normal emergency supply agreement
works, but yes, it is two-way. We would help them; they would help us. Council Member Fox
asked if they would have to submit a request if they needed water? Mr. Roznovsky said yes.
The steps to that would be that there is a develop agreement that gets put in place, and that
agreement defines what is an emergency, and what is the process for notifying opening.
Typically what we recommend is there are two ways you can do it. You can do a meter, which
meters are expensive, and they have to be maintained, or you do two locking valves next to
each other and you work out a calculation in the agreement. This would be on a 12 inch line.
A meter is $100,000. Mayor Countryman said she thought it was a significant amount. Mr.
Muckleroy said Stanley Lake was insistent on a meter until we explained that it was just for
emergency purposes. They backed off on the meter requirement and said they understand, and
we will just work out an agreement on a price. Mr. Muckleroy said that helps out with the cost.
Council Member Olson said we should be able to figure flow by pressure and value. Mr.
Roznovsky said typically what it says is you will just take your average daily flow divided by
the number of days that you are on connect and split the cost that way.

Mayor Countryman asked across the street, their proposed HEB that is going to be at the end
of our water line, will there be a water line that goes under SH-105 that would also be able to
have access should there be an emergency? Mr. Roznovsky said correct. Mayor Countryman
said, so not just on the north side. Mr. Roznovsky said correct. Currently the water line that
crosses SH-105 is at the intersection of FM 20854. HEB has the first half of the site and then

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 24



there is the remainder developer who has the second half. What was laid out to HEB and is in
their draft agreement that will get routed in the next few weeks is they fund the portion up to
their boundary and then the next person will be required to connect it across SH-105. It will be
more in front of the car wash versus all the way down at the end because of the city limits in
front the KOA. Mr. Roznovsky said there is no action tonight but just to wrap up this discussion
they will bring an agenda item to the agreement portion of this. There is also a study application
that has to go to the state because you are interconnecting to a public water systems. So they
need to approve it and get that process started and also enter into discussions with the developer
on funding of that agreement. Mayor Countryman said she has a question but will let Mr.
Roznovsky go through this before asking it.

Mr. Roznovsky said item three (3) is the recommended but not necessarily capacity increase.
We have talked about bleach conversion, over and over again, and that has been on the wish
list. It is still on the list? We do not want to take it off the list, however you know it is not a
priority one. The same thing with lift station number three (3) improvements. Lift station
number five (5) and lift station number three (3) are probably your two most in need lift
stations. Tri Pointe is replacing lift station number five (5) as part of their development, so that
one is covered. Lift station number three (3) if someone develops the Mabry property, which
is what wraps around MES, that lift station will get replaced. Pulte has been kicking around
the site. There is no definitive and they have not requested a feasibility study on it. They just
asked a couple questions. Again, it stays on the list. Eventually something needs to be done
with that legislation. The hope is a developer comes in and can either bear the total cost or at
least a significant cost. Council Member Donaldson said regarding lift station number five (5),
he thought they already agreed to move that station. Mr. Roznovsky said they did and that is
with Tri Pointe, so they will move it and replace it all in one. The current one that sits at the
bottom of the creek right next to SH-105 will get abandoned and demolished, and it will get
moved North on Westway Drive. Mr. Muckleroy said when they say move a lift station, it
literally means construct and physically do not move. Council Member Donaldson asked is
this developer driven also? Mr. Roznovsky said it is. They have actually put up their deposits
for both of those projects, so the design of both the waterline extension on Lone Star Parkway
and the lift station number five (5) relocation project are both those deposits. We received
confirmation last week and those are moving forward.

Mr. Roznovsky said the last item is section four (4). Again, these are all developer driven items
and/or development complete. They just have not been taken off the list because they have not
been paid out completely. Your Morning Cloud, that is Montgomery Crossing, the MISD
waterline that is paying their share, that line is in place. They just have not made it active,
because they are waiting until they are close to the end of construction before they turn it over
so that is just the timing.

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 24



The Buffalo Springs project we have talked about. The big one he wants to talk about here,
with the biggest asterisk next to it, is this TXDOT SH-105 utility relocation project. We have
talked about this project before during the budget planning season. We have gotten more clarity
and less clarity since then, because the timing keeps on changing from TxDOT. TxDOT has
completed their initial planning of where the utilities go, and we have identified all the conflicts
that are there. When you add up all the conflicts, the cost of all the survey materials, and testing
you are looking at about $1.3 million to $1.4 million for just a utility relocation project. This
does not upsize anything. This does not do anything; it just relocates utilities that are going to
be in conflict with TXDOT which is a lot. Council Member Donaldson asked what is the
timeline on this? Mr. Roznovsky said that is what keeps on moving. TXDOT originally said
this was a 2026 let date, so they wanted the utility relocated by 2026. As of today it is 2028
that it has moved back to. He said we do not want to recommend going forward with designing
or respending any money until there is a definitive timeline on it. We are not in a situation to
just spend $1.4 million and then wait for TXDOT to do their project. We are going to continue
to go back and forth. There are still some options with them that we are talking about that will
hopefully save some of the overall cost doing a funding agreement so their contractor handles
the work. The concern is that it is obviously a TXDOT contractor with city utilities. We will
weigh that out as we get there, but we wanted to include it, because again their timeline keeps
moving. Mayor Countryman asked is there any cost share they are willing to do with this? Mr.
Roznovsky said not for utilities within the right of way. When we have new developments,
that is why we require easements outside of TxDOT right of way because if they were in an
easement and TxDOT was expanding the right of way, they will pay to relocate the lines. In
this case these are existing utilities, and they are in TxDOT right of way, so therefore, they
said you are using our right of way and part of you using our right of way is if we have you
relocate them at your expense. Council Member Langley asked how long they have been there?
Mr. Roznovsky said they are the original six (6) inch water line that ran out to Napa, which
has been there for a long time. He does not have exact dates. The newest utility that is out there
is when Mr. Chris Cheatham extended the 12 inch water line on the north side to get over to
Hills of Town Creek. Council Member Fox said that is 10 years old. Mayor Countryman said
at least, maybe 20 years. Council Member Donaldson asked is that line is in the right of way?
Mr. Roznovsky said most of it is in an easement. Mr. Roznovsky said the rest of these are again
just developer driven projects, developer funded projects that are on the list. The only two the
City has a share of is in section four (4), are the utility relocations which are big, and to be
determined on timeline, and the MISD payment cost share of that water line which is done.

Mayor Countryman said we had spent money and time upgrading the City water lines from
downtown from eight (8) inch to 12 inch. In order for us to do our comprehensive plan, go
along with that, we need to have the sewer done. She said she does not see sewer on here.
Where is that? Mr. Roznovsky said correct. For the downtown redevelopment project there is
three (3) components to it from a true city infrastructure, not including the streetscape stuff.

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 24



You have your sewer line project but that is complete. It was completed two years ago to a
year and a half ago when this got kicked off. The sewer rehabilitation project work is done.
We are placing the water lines down McCowan. That is designed and ready to go. Our
understanding was that was going to be looped into the MEDC cost. To bring you an update
on that, we met with Ardurra last week and they are expecting to attend and bring updated cost
estimates and schedules, or at least cost estimates and statics, to next Tuesday's MEDC
meeting. Mayor Countryman said she thought they were going through Gunda or we had
worked with Gunda. Mr. Rozonovsky said Gunda was purchased by Ardurra. Mayor
Countryman asked what have we been waiting on, because we brought them to the table a long
time ago? Mr. Roznovsky said the design of the waterline replacement has been on the shelf
and has been complete for close to 12 months. We asked that question. Our understanding is
we are still trying to get details because that was one of our questions to Ardurra. How do we
get to this point? They were of the understanding that they were on hold for some of it. That
last fall, they were told to put on hold and they did not have an answer. Before that, they said
things were just moving slow. They were waiting on some design decisions which were mostly
related to the driveway through the steakhouse parking lot. Which that was a decision that he
thinks was made months ago, if not last summer, that he said | think we are not interested in
this. We were not involved in the day to-day, so we are starting to gather the information and
ask them to at least to start out with what is the overall cost of this project. So, then we can
determine okay they come back and it is outside the MEDC budget to be able to fund, what
portion of that waterline replacement needs to be completed for the revised scope? Mayor
Countryman asked have we made any payments to them or we are just using them as advisory
and then we don't pay them until the project starts? Mr. Roznovsky said he does not know, but
they can check. Ms. Maryann Carl said she looked under the name that she had and said this
is the first time she has heard that. She was not finding anything under the other options she
had or was she finding anything on the general ledger that was making sense to her in that area.
She said she will look this up and see if we can come up with a timeline and when that may
have happened. Chief Solomon asked was this not the company that we talked about the other
day? Ms. Carl said right that was Ardurra or something like that. He just said it was Gunda, so
we could have paid Gunda, but she does not know. Mayor Countryman said she thinks we did
pay Gunda. Council Member Langley said she is not sure for what, but she knows we have
made some payments to them. Mayor Countryman asked, have we paid Ardurra? Council
Member Langley said no. She does not even know if any of them have been coming to any
meetings, since they switched over. Mr. Roznovsky said he does not remember the exact date
they pulled us on the call but he thinks their last update they gave was early or mid-2024, like
March, April, or May timeline was their last update they gave to MEDC on the project. Council
Member Olson said it was last spring when they presented the one-way street. Mr. Roznovsky
said what they have been asked to bring to next Tuesday's meeting is an updated cost
assessment. We have asked to have it by tomorrow so they can get sent out Wednesday and an
updated schematic of what is the plan because it is been talked about one way, two-way, partial

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 24



one-way, what is the current plan that they are working on, and just the high level estimate
because again they come back and say well here it is and it is a $5 million project, what can
we do within the budget we have and then modify the water line. That is not in here and you
are correct. Again, once we find out what the cost is and what MEDC is contributing we can
move forward. Mayor Countryman said that would be great, because they spent that money on
the comprehensive plan and putting that together is what has kicked off the sewer line and
water line. She has been asked by business owners what is going on. She has also been asking
about the sewer and water lines and nobody has been able to give her a date so she thanked
Mr. Roznovsky for that. Mr. Roznovsky said they had that discussion with them as well,
because we are coming in catching up on information. What was the scope of the community
involvement that was in their original contract? Was it Town Hall meetings, was it pamphlets,
and who was supposed to be doing that? That was not in their scope to do those items. Those
are going to be handled by staff. We have asked for safe conversation they just provide an ad
services proposal because if there is assistance needed in handling that with a workforce, we
always have it in front of us. Mayor Countryman asked Mr. Muckleroy he had anything
different than that? Mr. Muckleroy said no. The conversations that he remembers happening
were let us wait and see what this overall project is going to cost as a whole before we jump
into spending money on a water line. We do not want to put the water line in and then find out
that it is such an outrageous cost to go through with the full plan that we are not going to do it
for 10 years, so let us wait and see. He said that is what he remembers, and it makes sense. Mr.
Roznovsky said it was also timing because like we talked about, we are not going to go tear up
the road, put in the waterline, fix the road, and then you will come back and tear up the road.
Mayor Countryman said it sounds like there just needed to be decisions made and we have
never gotten back to the table to make those decisions. Mr. Roznovsky said what is left for the
City to decide and order for you to finish up the plans so we can go to construction? Mayor
Countryman said it sounds like that was city driven to not move forward or the stall factor,
because they were thinking they were waiting on us of what the directive was. Mr. Roznovsky
said from the conversation we had with them last week was that there was a conversation last
fall to put it on pause. It was not a stop work, as they said it was kind of a pause, but that wasn't
until last fall. Mayor Countryman said she thought we were moving forward in that. Council
Member Olson said he knows they came to us with the plans for the one way streetscape last
spring sometime. He does not remember when but maybe May or June. Mayor Countryman
said everybody was really excited and was okay with one ways, well Council Member Langley
wasn’t. Council Member Olson said it would have to come to Council to get approved, and at
the time we advised MEC, and said the odds of this passing Council is slim so let us just tell
them is there another plan, let's get something else. Mayor Countryman said and that is what
we are waiting for. Mr. Roznovsky said they have a two-way up to Larry Jacob's lot, that
entrance next to Larry Jacob's building and then a one-way from there to College to essentially
just past the steakhouse was one-way. College to the Jacobs lot was one-way and then it was
two-way in front of the Jacobs lot on McCown. You could park either way and then rotate back

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 24



out but the one-way you couldn't head south on McCown. Council Member Olson said that
one-way all keyed off of being able to turn right and go through the parking lot at the
steakhouse. When we found out he was not interested in us doing that, it threw the one-way
out the window, besides the fact that we knew to would never pass Council. Mayor
Countryman said she knows that he had put in for some MECD funds to help the steakhouse
back in March of 2022 and then again last year and we never heard back from the person that
was over that. She said she thinks he is amenable to having a discussion because he wants help
with this parking lot in asphalting it so she thinks there is a partnership now that we could
probably talk to whatever that looks like. Council Member Olson said that is good news, good
information. Mr. Roznovsky said hopefully within the next few days you should at least have
an updated cost, and updated what it is and then can make a decision on how to move forward.

Council Member Langley asked is tonight a night to ask a question about College Street or
hold it until tomorrow night? Mr. Roznovsky said if you want, ask now and that way if he does
not have the answer he can get it to you by tomorrow night. Council Member Langley asked
on both sides of the street what are we doing there where the culverts are, where the water
flows through it at 90 miles an hour? Mr. Roznovsky said the full scope of the project is
replacing the three culverts and resetting them. On both the upstream and downstream edges
put large riprap, regrade it, shape it, and put large riprap to help dissipate some of the energy
so it does not just continue to shoot downstream. That is on the both upstream and downstream
side of that. It includes the new guard rails on each side, repaving on top of it, and then
regrading the ditch specifically on the north side of College heading toward the east.

Council Member Fox asked if that would address the water problems for the two homeowners
on the north side of College? Mr. Roznovsky asked can you remind me, because | remember
talking about water problems on that property many times over the years. Was it water backing
up or was it the volume of water? Mayor Countryman said it was coming over and it is volume
of water. They have a retaining wall there and it is starting to make that retaining wall fail,
because | am assuming the rapid water and the amount of water that is coming because of the
building that has happened. Mr. Roznovsky said it will help dissipate the energy before it goes
down, so it is going to slow it down so the erosion isn't as bad. Council Member Fox said the
house that is west of that was an issue too because it got all the way up to her porch. Mr.
Roznovsky said he does not see how that will change the amount of water because we are not
doing anything downstream to improve how it gets all the way to Town Creek. This is just
fixing those culverts. He said now one thing I will know: we are not increasing the size of the
culverts, so we are not putting more water through, we are just replacing them with what is
there today. Council Member Fox asked if there is nothing that you are going south to control
the water coming through the culvert? Mr. Roznovsky said they will do riprap on both sides.
It is going to slow it down but we are not changing the volume and we are not increasing the
amount that can go under.

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 10 of 24



Mayor Countryman asked Mr. Roznovsky if we are concerned about Tri Pointe and or Grace
Point, the housing that is going to come here that is going to create more wash off to go down
that way? Are we engineering it for the future? Mr. Roznovsky said what their requirement is
going to be is they mitigate all of their increased flow so the Tri Pointe folks will put in their
own ponds along the creek and then Grace Point if he remembers right had two (2) or three (3)
proposed ponds to help offset their flow going to this creek as well. Mayor Countryman asked
if it is going to be a minimal impact or no impact? Mr. Roznovsky said the City requirement
is that their post-develop flow does not exceed their pre-developed flow. Today they are
sending 100 cubic feet of water and after it is done, they can send no more than 100 cubic feet
of water downstream. Council Member Olson said his problem with ponds, is when ponds are
full they run off just as much as runs in. Mr. Roznovsky said right. At the 100 year storm event,
which is what the drainage criteria is for those first stages will go in but then the rest will go
over in extreme overflow down to the creek. Council Member Langley asked where her sewer
manhole is in front off of College, right there in front of the property, when the water is coming
through that creek or ditch that water comes across the street and will cover up the manhole
there. It comes barely across over the top of the road. If you cleaned the ditch out back toward
SH-105 would that help, is that not our ditch, is that somebody else’s ditch? Mr. Roznovsky
said you do not have an easement over all of those ditches and creeks through that area. You
have some between the different developments. Council Member Langley said everybody
believes that it is the City’s ditch. Mr. Roznovsky said he knows there is a gap especially
between the west side at the park in College Street. There is a gap there for sure. Once you get
into Lone Star Estates, he believes they dedicated some easements. Then once you get to West
Side Park there are some easements, but there is a gap between Carolina and College. Council
Member Langley said the water comes off of SH-105 right here and will wind through that
property there. Mr. Roznovsky said he will do some more digging to answer your first question.
Council Member Langley said the house that she is talking about that almost floods every time
we get any kind of rain there is because the water is not going through the culverts. It is coming
over the street. Mr. Roznovsky said and this project is specifically just fixing the road and is
not looking at the quantity of water or direction of water. Council Member Langley said she
has a new hole and now you have to go over here to this hole. Mayor Countryman said because
it is less deep than the other hole. Mr. Muckleroy asked just to clarify, are you saying that it is
going over the road because the culverts are already full, and it is pushing? Council Member
Langley said yes. Council Member Cheryl Fox said the house that she’s talking about is
Marilyn Thompson's house. Council Member Langley said right. When the culverts are doing
what they are supposed to be doing, the water is still coming across. Council Member Olson
said the culverts are not big enough. Council Member Langley said she does not know. Mayor
Countryman said that is what she was thinking, but then he said too big. It is going to keep up
the rapid. Council Member Langley said somebody suggested one big culvert and not three (3)
little culverts. Mayor Countryman said that is too much velocity and asked Mr. Muckleroy we

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 11 of 24



don not have the left hand side, the South side of that road? We don't have an easement or way
we can do a ditch? Mr. Muckleroy said not running out of the right of way. We just have what
is in the right of way. Council Member Olson asked how wide is that? Instead of using riprap
he has seen it where we basically just pour these concrete cubes. That would slow it down
enough. Mayor Countryman said to it is almost like giving her a retaining wall as well. Mr.
Roznovsky said it is all about slowing down water and dissipating some of the energy, but
what we are not changing is the capacity. Let us take a look and see what other options there
are. Council Member Langley asked do you want some videos? Council Member Olson said
it sounds like we need to change the capacity a little bit especially with other developments
upstream. Mr. Roznovsky said he will gladly take whatever videos we have, and we will look
at some options. Council Member Langley said the water is coming so fast through those
culverts that is what is washing. Council Member Donaldson said and that is what they want
to mitigate. They want to mitigate the erosion and by putting this correction in, it is going to
slow the water down and slow the erosion factor down so they are trying to help the
homeowners. Council Member Olson said his thought process though is if we put in more
volume and slow it down so that way you don't need the speed to move the water you can get
by with just a larger hole, it might solve all the problems. Council Member Fox asked but there
is no easement on that side though is there? Mr. Muckleroy said no. Council Member Olson
said he said 30 feet on both sides which is about all you need to get those concrete cubes in.
Mr. Muckleroy said just replacing the culverts is going to make an improvement too because
right now their holders are not clogged up but they are cattywampus like you wouldn't believe.
Even though they are the same size putting them at the right level and nice and straight will
help with flow as well.

Mr. Roznovsky said when you go down the bottom of the page to the big scary number at the
bottom, when you add up all the city share of the projects including the TxDOT stuff you're
looking at almost $24 million. Take away your current Cos and the ARPA funds you're still
sitting at $21 million which is a big number.

The next thing we want to discuss is obviously your impact fees and what is expected from
that timing then we will talk about some rate stuff that we looked into. The next page and what
this shows is a very quick summary of your known developments moving forward, expected
time of plotting, and when they would pay their impact fees or what impact fees they would
pay based on today's rates. Then, if in their agreement there is any type of credit that is lifted
off to the side, so it is subtracted from the total. Going down to the second table you see your
impact fee balance. Where you are sitting right now is $681,666. We are still expecting
payment from Redbird, correct? So, that will go up but that is included in the calculation. When
you keep on going down to that table you have a projected balance of 2025, 26, and 27. A big
note is that assumes you are not spending money out of that. This is not a cash flow. This is
just here is what we have today, here is what we expected to come in, not spending money out

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 12 of 24



which we know is not reasonable, but just trying to give you a magnitude of what is expected.
| am not going to go through each line item on here because that is not helpful, but you will
see the developments listed. Expected timeline of platting and the amounts that they would pay
you have $681 million today projected by the end of 2025. You have a total of about three (3)
and a half because you have Redbird, Montgomery Bend their last two (2) sections, another
section of Redbird. HEB that May 25 we have passed them and that is their timeline that they
would expect to plat the property before summer. Nothing on the building, just to clarify that
this when they would plan to plat. Hills of Town Creek section five (5) is an agenda item for
tomorrow. One note on that is they pay at the time of connection, so you are not going to expect
to get a check for that full amount. You are going to get it per each cap as it grows. Heritage
Grove just so we are all in the same naming convention is Tri Pointe. That is the first phase
which is the larger lots. Their plan is to start at Lone Star Parkway and work South toward SH-
105. Council Member Olson asked that is one just North of Napa here? Mr. Roznovsky said
correct. The Crossing at Montgomery is the Marjorie Cox development over here off between
Old Plantersville and Old Dobbin Plantersville and then Lone Star Ridge is the Taylor
Morrison development on Lone Star Parkway. Council Member Olson said it used to be called
Wind Swept or something like that. Mr. Roznovsky said yes it has been so many names, but it
is Taylor Morrison and then Lone Star Ridge are the correct names. Council Member Langley
asked who is Superior Properties? Mr. Roznovsky said Superior is the one who came in toward
the end of last year about the rezoning that backs up to Lawson and Simonton with the mixture
of a commercial and multi-family component. Superior Properties and HEB are both working
on development agreements with the City attorney so those will be circulated once they are in
draft form to move forward. Mayor Countryman asked why we do not have Mia Lago on here?
Mr. Roznovsky said they have gone silent. He has not heard from them.

Mr. Roznovsky said you do have impact fees coming in however obviously as you know $4
million and $3.5 million. Council Member Olson asked regarding the 2025 balances, this is a
cumulated balance to hit $5 million? Mr. Roznovsky said correct. That is accumulated by the
end of each of those years. Mayor Countryman said so basically almost a million dollar jump
every year it looks like the difference. Councilmember Olson said he thinks the accumulation
would be the maxed out at five (5). It would not be five (5) plus four (4) plus three (3) is five
(5). Mayor Countryman said that is what she is saying. It is gaining a million dollars every
year. Mr. Roznovsky said obviously there's a lot of other properties but what you know today
that seem to be moving forward here about five (5). Mayor Countryman said Mr. Roznovsky
remind me what is our limit or what can we use impact fees for? Mr. Roznovsky said you can
use it for items that are on your capital improvement that are for increased capacity. Let me
use water plant two (2), as an example. You are replacing the tank in kind so you cannot use it
for the tank. If you made the tank bigger which we looked at the option and it did not make a
whole lot of sense, you could use that increased capacity piece. For the well it went from a 300
GPM to a 500 GPM so we are taking two fifths of the cost as impact fee eligible. Mayor

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 13 of 24



Countryman said so it is not for repair it is for new water. Mr. Roznovsky said if you look on
this sheet at the very last column it has a yes or no on what are impact eligible from this list. |
left one off. The waterline upsizing, that is not on the list. It definitely goes for your biggest
ticket items. Plan expansions which are 100% expanded capacity cost. You can also use impact
fees for payment of debt. Mayor Countryman said so that CO we had if we wanted to pay it
off if we could.

Mr. Roznovsky said where this all culminates, and we have a big lengthy packet that is marked
preliminary on it is obviously we have a delta, so you have a lot of money needing to be spent
to demand additional funds. We talked to your financial advisor and we looked at a handful of
different items. You have grants. So as we talked about this before, Montgomery is not big
enough for the big regional type projects, but you are not small enough to be low income, so
you are right in that middle that does not check a lot of the true free money grant projects other
than the very specific hey here is a grant for transportation alternatives, sidewalks, those very
specific items. When it comes to big plant infrastructure you are too small for the big regional
stuff, you are too big for the rural system stuff, you are right in the middle where you do not
fall into a lot of those categories. There are still funding opportunities out there through the
Water Development Board and through others but not free. | say free with “quotes”, not grant
money. These are low-interest rate loans which you have used before. So then you go back and
we look at the CO’s. You just issued water and sewer revenue CO’s. Based on today's market
as of Friday when we talk to your financial advisor, about $775,000 in additional water and
sewer revenue gets you about a million dollars in CO capacity. For every additional $75,000
we can generate water and sewer and we can get a million dollars, rough numbers, and borrow
money for that amount.

Tax-based bonds are a different discussion and we will not be going into that tonight, other
than when | go through the water and sewer rates, we will talk about what options we want to
see and what makes sense. Knowing that and knowing the delta, we went through a rate
analysis. | don't expect to read every word but flip to the very last page. | want to start here
with the memo letter. One thing that | know has been a concern of Council and the residents is
making sure that our rates are competitive with our neighbors and that we are not extremely
high or extremely low, but that we are falling in line. What you see here is obviously we are
using averages and making assumptions and running the same calculation across the board.
For your proposed rates at this point when we look at your existing City of Montgomery rates,
existing Conroe rates, and existing City of Magnolia, you can see for the different user types
your single family, commercial, multi-family, institutional and irrigation how those vary
between the two. A couple important things to note is these include all of their regional water
authority related fees so both the Conroe and Magnolia have SRA fees that they pay. City has
a regional water authority fee or groundwater reduction plan fee that is included on the bill.
That is all included here so you can see that again based on our existing, for a single family

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 14 of 24



home on average is $52, Magnolia is $74, and Conroe is $104. For commercial, irrigation, and
institutional it varies but you're now in the ballpark. There is quite a lot of variation between
them but just kind of keeping that in mind. Council Member Fox asked what is the difference
on the institutional? Mr. Roznovsky said institutional are your churches and your schools,
essentially your city buildings, non- taxable. Council Member said she knows but why is there
such a difference? Mr. Roznovsky said Zach can pull it up. He has on his computer on where
the difference falls on how they set up their rates. Council Member Langley asked what about
the Water Development Board? Do they have a survey or a program that helps you decide your
rate in your water? Mr. Roznovsky said he is not familiar with that. He said he knows they
have funding sources for funding water and sewer analyses. Council Member Langley asked
Mr. Muckleroy if he has ever seen it? We used to use it all the time when we got ready to raise
rates. Mr. Muckleroy asked like a water rate calculator? Council Member Langley said yes.
Mr. Roznovsky said we will take a look. Council Member Langley said it shows the cities
around you and it shows if you're going to be way out of line. Mr. Roznovsky said we will take
a look. He said he knows a lot of the times he has dealt with rate related stuff and went through
the Public Utility Commission on rates, but we will go back and take a look and see. Council
Member Langley said it was very helpful. We do not get the magazine anymore | do not think,
but we used to get a magazine every month. Council Member Olson said based on these
proposed rates, though obviously you have done a bunch of work here. Based on this proposed
rate, what kind of an impact are we looking at? Mr. Roznovsky said if we are just working off
that last column, that average user, the $63, when you carry that down you are looking at about
$750,000 in additional water and sewer. What that means to that average single home was $10.
Commercial varies. Council Member Langley asked now this is water and sewer? Mr.
Roznovsky said that is the combined water and sewer. This last sheet is like a combined bill.
The sheets in front go through what the changes are per category, conceptual. Council Member
Langley asked how many single families are $52 a month? Mr. Roznovsky said the average
user is 6,300 gallons a month. Council Member Fox said that is so not average. Ms. Beaven
asked and this is not including solid waste? This is not including like trash collection? Council
Member Olson asked this is just water and sewer right? Council Member Fox said she is just
talking about water and sewer and not average. Council Member Olson said no, neither am I.
Mr. Roznovsky said they took the last 12 months of data and ran the average amongst them.
There were a lot of new connections that had zeros so they excluded those zero accounts so
they were not trying to drive it down artificially and that is where they got this. Council
Member Olson said okay so again you just did a total for each of the users. Single family is
basically $800,000 and then $46,000 for commercial. He asked is there a total anywhere? Mr.
Roznovsky said it is not on this sheet. We need a cleaner version to hand out to talk about the
concept but it is $750,000 so at the end of the day with this change it is $750,000. Council
Member Olson said that does not make sense though because it says the single family would
generate $799,000. Mr. Roznovsky said that is the current, so not the delta but currently what
they are generating. When you do the changes it would generate approximately $20,000.

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 15 of 24



Council Member Olson said okay he misread that. He asked if the year you said would be
seven (7) and 20? Mr. Roznovsky said roughly $750,000 total with these changes and that
would be an average $10 increase to a single family home. Council Member Olson said if we
were looking at paying at the $21 million we are trying to hit, $750,000 is a joke, but if we are
trying to pay a debt service? Mr. Roznovsky said about $10 million of that can if you are using
the $75,000. About $10 million would be able to support that. The other thing to note is the
other $10 million that you have the impact fees that are not included in there, you are still short
and that is where we want to talk because we also know we cannot raise this rate where it is
double and that is not what we want to do. So, what is a comparable rate? The other thing this
assumes is no growth in connections. This is static connections we have today. Mayor
Countryman said so it does not take into account Redbird and it does not take into account all
the new development like Taylor Morris and Tri Pointe. Mr. Roznovsky said roughly single
family homes is around $1,000 a year in water and sewer revenue and every 75 homes gets
you another $1 million in capacity. Council Member Olson said we would need roughly 1,000
homes. Mayor Countryman said we are going to get a thousand homes. Council Member Olson
said yes but they'd have to be built and tapped in the next 24 months and that isn’t going to
happen. Mr. Roznovsky said correct. We do not think and have talked with your financial
advisor that water rates alone is going to solve the problem because one (1), we want to stay
competitive with the entities around us and two (2), we cannot have that big of an increase.
Where | want to leave with you tonight is, is this in the range of what a comfortable increase
would be for water and sewer rates and then if it is, we will go back and say okay here is
generally what we are working with within bounds, we will sit down with the financial advisor
and staff and say where is the delta and what does that mean in terms of tax? What tax rate
would have to be levied in order to support that and is that an option? What other items are out
there to be able to meet the delta between the two? Mr. Muckleroy said if you have got any
input on the individual sections. We went from what we have heard in the past on Council of
not wanting to impact the single family, at least the low end single family users as little as
possible. You look at these and you see how much the commercial is going up versus how
much the multifamily, versus how much the institutional. We do not have any direction on
what to see on that. Anything can go up or down on the individual classes. Mr. Roznovsky said
we will send out a side by side so you are not flipping through pages and can see the current
structure and the proposed structure side by side. Mayor Countryman said obviously with the
current state of affairs with the economy, burdening families even further is not something this
Council is interested in. However, due to the state of affairs with the mass influx of people
something is going to have to give in order to support it. Part of her says the commercial is still
going to come and they are not going to really look at water rates. Maybe make them a little
bit heavier than the residential. Mr. Roznovsky said especially when you look at using the
commercial as the example. When you can take that same average uses as related to Conroe
you are at $1,700 versus $267. Council Member Olson said even though we are going up just
shy of thirty percent on their rate it was obviously extremely low. Mayor Countryman said the

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 16 of 24



deltas really are in the single family and the commercial. Mr. Roznovsky said right because
that is where your volume is. Mayor Countryman said she was trying to see if we could offset
one with multifamily or even institutional. Council Member Olson said 20 percent increase at
single family just shy of 30 percent at commercial, less than 30, about 20 percent on
multifamily, and about 25 percent on institutional. He said those are rough obviously. Council
Member Donaldson said he wants to know what is that increase going to accomplish for us
because the way he is reading it is we are increasing the rates in order to have enough money
to borrow and then pay the note. The increase in the rates will pay the note. Council Member
Olson said they will not pay the whole note though. It will pay a $10 million note, and we need
a $21 million note. Mayor Countryman asked so where is that $11 million going to come from?
Council Member Donaldson said, so we are still short. Council Member Olson said we are
still. Council Member Donaldson said we are just looking at $10 million. Council Member
Olson said we are looking at shortening the gap. Now we are going to raise taxes to cover $21
million or $11 million. Mr. Roznovsky said $10 million and the impact fees, yes. You're still
short regardless and so the next steps coming out of this are setting some general parameters
around these rates to then get the financial advisor fully involved and say okay here is scenario
one (1), two (2), and three (3). Scenario one (1) ask these different components to generate that
revenue and scenario two (2) and scenario three (30) that combination. What we did not want
to do is run 100 percent in a water rate scenario or 100 percent in a tax rate scenario. There is
going to be some type of blend or some other mechanism. Council Member Olson said he had
a conversation with the County three weeks ago roughly. The conversation had to do with the
fact that they went in and got ahead of other counties. A lot of it had to do with transportation
studies. They basically got $51 million worth of grants. He asked them at the time if they knew
of any utility grants that the State comes forth because our people were not able to find any
and he said there is actually a ton when it comes to utilities like the water tower issues. He said
you just have to go to the right place to get them and they are through the State. Mr. Roznovsky
said for the water infrastructure fund there is a regional plan and it is for these larger regional
type facilities. He is not saying there are not ones out there. The ones they started looking into
are the rural water funds which are much lower interest rates. We are not in a defined rural
county for those. They have included in the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for like the
wastewater plant project funding a specialist as well to assist with these because he thinks all
the help they can get is better. He thinks it would be prudent to engage Grant Works or another
grant administrator that Grant Works is already working with the City to also be a little
proactive and look for other opportunities that are out there outside of the home grant, helping
them with the ARPA funds to help identify some of these. Council Member Olson said right
because the example he used was the fact that the State basically mandates us to spend this $16
million on a water tower and to upgrade to the 2,500 hookups. If the State is telling us you
must, then at some point they have to allow us somewhere to go. We need help. You are forcing
us to do this so we need help to do this and he said yes, the State will help you. We just have
to find it. Mayor Countryman said she was at a workshop today for towns and they brought the

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 17 of 24



USDA and that is a great funding source as well. Have we looked into the USDA? Apparently,
they have got a lot of money but she does not know what their latest programs are. Mr.
Muckleroy said like Mr. Roznovsky said that is part of the RFQ process to select an engineer
that assists with that.

Mayor Countryman said she knows this is not a popular thought but do cities say okay this
year it is a $10 rate and in five (5) years it is another amount, like start stair stepping it up and
making that known to the taxpayer for future reference and thought? Mr. Roznovsky said yes.
He thinks in 2015 that rate analysis was done and it came up with a three (3) tier program. He
knows they implemented stage one (1) and two (2) but three (3) was never put into place.
Mayor Countryman asked why did it not go? Mr. Muckleroy said Mr. Jack Yates had evaluated
it and said he did not feel like we needed to initiate the change with the third year and we were
doing fairly well. Mayor Countryman said it was an administrative decision based on where
we were. Mr. Roznovsky said these projects, even the $21 million projects are not done in a
calendar year, especially when you just pull out the water plant and sewer plant. Those are
two-three year projects, however, obviously we want to have the funding in place before we
sign a contract. There is still the preliminary work of getting designed and the approval portion
of it. With the wastewater plant, the State has been extremely backed up. We are still waiting
for the final wastewater permit for the plant which is why we have not brought a proposal back
to you because you do not want to sign a proposal and not have the final permit in hand. On
the water plant we did receive that permit from Lone Star for the well out on that site. The
preliminary stuff on this has been in the works. There are also things that we will look into and
work with between your attorney and staff. Items put into these development agreements of
developers participating in the costs up front, he knows for sure that is in the Redbird
agreement where it talks about when they need additional capacity as they bring on stages if
there is a need that they agree to help. It is a vague term but those are in place or at least out
there to have those discussions on.

Mayor Countryman asked did we ask any other developers like the Marjorie Cox or Trio
Pointe? Mr. Roznovsky said he will have to confirm this but it was a general term that the
attorneys had in there and it was talking about when additional capacity is needed in request,
but he will have to confirm that as he does not know for sure.

Council Member Olson said, so basically everything on here though is all water and utilities
and there is really no transportation. Mr. Roznovsky said that is correct. Council Member
Olson said to bring that up and obviously we do not have the funds to do anything, one of the
reasons the conversation that he had the meeting with Mr. Smith was he wanted to inform me
that they had funds for transportation. They put Buffalo Springs, Lone Star Parkway, and at
least one other road that is in Montgomery on their list to get federal funds where it would be
like a 90/10 split, where feds would pick up 90 percent and we would pick up 10 percent and

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 18 of 24



then we would fix the road. He said now those were all submitted by the County for us. Mayor
Countryman said she talked to Mr. Robert Walker the other day and he said | just want you to
know on the ballot in May there is going to be a bond. If it passes, we are going to make Lone
Star Parkway a four-lane road and help you out there. He was talking about being able to also
help maybe on FM 1097 she thinks he said. Mayor Countryman said no, not FM 1097 but
somewhere else he was talking about. Maybe it is Buffalo Springs. If we can get this bond
passed at the County then there will be funds to help you out with some infrastructure. Council
Member Olson said but these were federal funds that they already secured that if we did not
have to go for a bond, they received them from the Fed. Mayor Countryman said but we would
pay 10% hopefully with this what the County is doing. Yes, we will pay the cap through taxes
but at the same time it would be on their back to get it done and we would not have to participate
atall, it would be done. He said Lone Star Parkway and thinks Buffalo Springs. She will double
check with him but he just wanted to let her know. Council Member Donaldson said he is got
a state of the County meeting set up for January 30" at Lone Star. Council Member Olson said
one of the projects that they want to do is to connect 1097. One is farther South than the other
and they want to straighten it out and connect them at the northern one and that is part of that
project. Mayor Countryman said it is supposed to be like a flyover they were talking about.
That has been talked about for years but then when she talked to TXDOT there was no interest
because she cannot remember, but they were talking about that bad turn to straighten it out and
going over FM 149. She said she is sure Mr. Roznovsky heard this for FM 1097 West. She
then talked to somebody, and they said that is not possible. Mr. Roznovsky said behind Summit
Business Park. Mayor Countryman said yes and they need to do it while there is imminent
domain. Mr. Roznovsky said he knows the FM 149 expansion. We are the engineer for TxDOT
for SH-105 south to FM 149 to FM 249. We are expanding that to a four lane. Mayor
Countryman said with a median. That sounds like when meeting with them a couple weeks
ago like it was on the fast track. Mr. Roznovsky said there is a survey crew out there and they
have been requesting utility plans. Mayor Countryman said she knows that south loop that we
have talked about it is not Mr. Walker’s, but she asked him about that and again talking with
those at TXxDOT, | mean | know Mr. Riley spent a lot of time in Austin advocating and they
are getting five (5) huge, big roads going. What can we do to get to advocate for that South
loop? It is so necessary although she does not like it because it takes people away from our
downtown, but this place absolutely gets locked up and it is only going to get worse with a
thousand more houses here and 10,000 around us. Mr. Roznovsky said they need to follow up
with Kendig Keast because they are updating the City. We provided them comments before
Christmas on what we think is the best interest of the City, here are city roads, the surrounding
roads, and how those interact. We have had those meetings over the years. Mayor Countryman
said it is concerning because Randall pulled out of our ETJ so now there is no conversations
going to be had that we can have with him about going through his property. Council Member
Olson said he brought that up because that thoroughfare was part of what he was talking about
and | said well you know those guys are no longer in the ETJ and he said we are already on

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 19 of 24



them and we are just going to tell them this is where we are going. Mayor Countryman said
that is good and it is the time to do that now before things start getting built out. Council
Member Olson said that does leave us to that other housing development with the Cox
development because part of that went through theirs and we told them during the time of the
agreement we have no idea and nobody has told us anything so design away. Mayor
Countryman said theirs is also North of SH-105. She has not heard from Lone Star Parkway to
SH-105 and theirs is going to be a really wide road anyway. Mr. Roznovsky said the Tri Pointe
folks which is now Heritage Grove is putting in the widened section through. There will be a
gap because of the Carlisle property to get to SH-105 and then the Morning Cloud has in their
land plan continuing that same south direction and curving. When we had preliminary
discussions with Pulte he was looking at the Mabry properties of this and we said this is
something you have to plan for as well to continue on. Now it has shifted a little bit because
originally where the line was drawn by the County it was more in line with the bus barn and
they are expanding the bus barn. That is not going anywhere. We reproposed coming in South
of the school, it is immediately South and then it is an open shot. Mayor Countryman asked if
there is any chance of them widening Spring Branch Road because they are widening Keenan
and then they could jog over to Spring Branch to bring them around this way. Instead of doing
that South loop through Marjorie Cox and Redbird they could do it on the side. Mr. Roznovsky
said he has not had a conversation recently with the County. Previously we talked to the County
and drew up a couple concepts where Spring Branch continued North versus creating a new
one because it was between the railroad there is a pipeline and SH-105 so we try to consolidate
that as much as possible. Mayor Countryman said we don't necessarily need it to line up with
the Lone Star Parkway, the North side. Mr. Roznovsky said even then it is still open land. The
concept would be is where Emma’s Way connects it jogs over and goes closer to the cell tower
and then it is lined up where you have a pretty close proximity, but it has been a while since
we have had that conversation with the County.

Mayor Countryman said she does not know if it would be worthwhile to get the County,
TxDOT, the City of Montgomery, City of Magnolia, and the Commissioners to sit down and
say okay tell us what your plans are. That is why Mr. Walker was talking to her about it because
he said | am going to need your help, helping with this bond on your side of the County because
in his precinct it would really widen, and everybody knows that you will lose your teeth going
down Lone Star Parkway too fast because it is a terrible road. Widening it too we could get it
resurfaced and widen. It sounds like a win but how much are you talking about. Council
Member Fox asked how much is the bond? Mayor Countryman said they were still discussing
it when she spoke to him. Council Member Olson asked so that would cover our 10 percent
then is what you are saying of the federal 90/10 split? Mayor Countryman said she does not
know. The bond goes to the County. Council Member Olson said but that is what you are
saying, step up and help right because that is their road? Mayor Countryman said right. Council
Member Olson said but that is where Smith had said no, the County has asked us to take that

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 20 of 24



road and said we want nothing to do with that unless they fix it. Then he said if the feds paid
for 90 percent of it and the city paid 10 percent then it would be your road and they can tell
them to go away. Mayor Countryman said we just want a good road and does not want to take
something that is broken and have to spend a whole bunch of money to fix it. Council Member
Olson said he agrees. Mr. Muckleroy said it has to be fixed right. We went through this process
in 2017. It was redone from end to end in the anticipation of turning it over and see how it is
now. Council Member Olson said you cannot just fix the surface and say oh it is smooth again.
If they don't fix the road itself, the substructure, it is not going to hold. Mayor Countryman
said when she moved here nobody knew that road hardly existed and they did not use it. Today
it is a super highway.

Mr. Roznovsky said he thinks also getting on the County’s radar for Lone Star Bend and the
Lone Star Parkway intersection. Mayor Countryman said there is a dead tree there that she had
told Mr. Palmer about several times. | do not know if he ever told you, but | get asked about
that tree all the time. Is that our tree? Ms. Tilley said it is on private property. Mayor
Countryman said it is terrible and needs to come down. Council Member Olson said because
we do not have any money for roads, we need to look where we can get any money we can for
the roads. Mayor Countryman said that is what Council Member Donaldson and | too were on
the HGAC and | know Mr. Howard Wood who is on the Council over in Conroe is really trying
to beat the drum for small cities. A lot of the small cities did a coalition together because it is
depending on how many seats you have by your size and when you were having at Houston
and even Conroe and other big cities that HGAC they had way more seats at the table than we
do so we were trying to say okay now we are a force to be reckoned with, with a bigger seat
with all of us in it. Mr. Wood got $57 million given to Conroe for roads. That would be great
if we could, but I think not being pessimist, but | think a lot of cities are experiencing a lot of
growth in this area and thinks there are other places that would get the money before us from
what | am hearing. Unless you can sit up there off of Greenway Plaza over there and advocate
in their face constantly it is absolutely darn near impossible if we do not have somebody sitting
there to get any kind of assistance or acknowledgement when they acknowledge. They like it
when they see us at meetings, but funding us is a different story.

Council Member Donaldson asked Mr. Roznovsky if he is confident these impact fees will
come to pass? Mr. Roznovsky said we do not have anything on this list, | handed out that is
not a true product. These are executed agreements, they are moving forward, there is deposits
put up, there is moving pieces. We try to be as conservative as we can on the timing and
pushing things back because things always push. We do not have on this list the Nantucket
project which that is going to be a very large impact because he thinks it is 340 units so
probably an eight (8) inch meter so that is $500,000. They will develop eventually but there is
not a timeline today so we do not have them on this sheet. He is confident it will come. Mayor
Countryman said even with all of this development we still have quite the canvas for more

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 21 of 24



buildout. Mr. Roznovsky said there is some very large pieces of property still that have been
kicked around between the Rampy pond, still infill, and the other developments. Just now you
will have the BCS Capital project and that feasibility study will be on the next agenda in two
(2) weeks. Also, someone was looking at the property next door.

Mr. Roznovsky said from what he has heard, we will relook at the commercial rates seeing

if we can have some room to move up in that. Again, this is not set in stone but are there any
major initial thoughts on the other? Look on that proposed bill scenario and look at taking this
up or taking this down. We will send out the side-by-side comparison but just for an initial
path so when we start with the financial advisor and looking at this as a whole we can say after
it is going to be we estimate 850 or we estimate it is 650 based on the changes. Council Member
Olson said other than the commercial he thinks everything else looks fair and that is his
opinion. Mayor Countryman said | am with you. That is the only one that is glaring that | would
also take a jump out. Mr. Roznovsky said sure, it is not set in stone. We will play with it, give
it to the financial advisor, and come back with it. Mr. Muckleroy said just to clarify you are
talking about the possibility of raising commercial up to generate more than the $750,000.
Mayor Countryman said yes. Use this as a flooring. Council Member Olson said he thinks the
other rates are fair. It just looks like we were a little behind on commercial. Compared to
Magnolia we should be similar, but compared to Conroe we are way behind. Mayor
Countryman said Magnolia has different problems than we do and thinks we are a little bit
more desirable because they are Old Magnolia. Council Member Olson said they are trying to
draw in.

Mr. Roznovsky said to capture what we talked about we will look at the commercial rate,
reevaluate that, and sit down with the financial advisor after we do that analysis. He does not
have a timeline but will give them a couple of options on how to make this funding gap. We
will take a look at the USDA funds and any other funding as well and always have the
conversation with staff and Grant Works on what it would take to get them more engaged to
look for other options that are out there. We will take a look at the Water Develop Board rate
analysis that Council Member Langley mentioned, and this is going way back but we will look
at the College Street mitigation stuff and some options for that. Mayor Countryman said we
met with Grant Works after we went to TML and they were going to be looking at some other
funding. She never heard back from Luke but she also thinks that Mr. Palmer jumped in she is
assuming to keep us out of it. We had had a great conversation with him, and she is assuming
she is pretty sure he was told not to talk to us. She is assuming that whatever the update is, that
knowledge went out the door so we might want to go back to Luke and see because we had a
great conversation, and he definitely said there is a funding arm for this and there is an
opportunity here. Mr. Roznovsky said he had a conversation with another city the other day
and thinks they had more in grants than their general fund. Mayor Countryman said it can be
done; it is just finding them. Mr. Roznovsky said it was full time and she just was fully focused

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 22 of 24



on finding, searching, and engaging every single pot that was out there. Mayor Countryman
said the lady that ran the workshop today is a grant writer. | do not know if you all know of
any, but if we can use her, she is been very successful where she is in writing grants and she is
the one telling me where to go and what to do. Council Member Fox said that is definitely
something to think about to get a grant writer. Mayor Countryman said she does not know if it
is something that you need full-time. Yes, we need grants full-time, but she does not know if
you can do a contract basis. Council Member Fox asked Council Member Langley who was a
grant writer from the east side. Was it Mr. Robert Rice? Council Member Langley said Mr.
Jay Rice. Mayor Countryman asked do they find the grant and then write it or do we have to
find the grant and then they go write it? How does that work? Mr. Roznovsky said it is a little
bit of both. Mayor Countryman said she feels like we have to be the hunters. Mr. Roznovsky
said we tell them we want to go after these, here are some alternatives and then they will really
help. How do we tailor this package to get the maximum scoring out of this? Every time that
we have done grants with the city it is been that with Grant Works and with public management
as well. How do we find these projects and fit them in and make them meet the criteria to
maximize it out. It is a little bit of a dance. Mayor Countryman said nothing moves fast with
grants. Mr. Roznovsky said nothing moves fast. Mayor Countryman said but they can certainly
add to your bottom line. Mr. Muckleroy said you had made mention of a possibility of a tier
program over a couple of years. Is that something you want them to look at as well the $750,000
or maybe a little more? Mayor Countryman said let's look at options. | think we are open and
maybe it is like an every three (3) year, four (4) year option for the next 20 years. | do not know
if that is even within realm of reasonable. What did we do when Mr. Jack Yates had it? Was it
every two (2) years or one (1) year? Mr. Muckleroy said there was an evaluation and the result
was let us increase, we need to get rates up. We were losing. At that time the water and sewer
fund was being subsidized by the general fund every year so it was a plan of we need to raise
the rates quite a bit, but let us do it over four (4) years. Let us split it out. We just only did two
(2). Mayor Countryman said | do not know that we need to do it every year back to back. |
think that it is going to really be a real hard pill for us to be able to sell for somebody to
swallow, but | definitely think it is certainly a three (3) to five (5) year program. I don't know
if that would actually satisfy the money that we need though during that time. Mr. Roznovsky
and there is always going to be more projects, always going to be more stuff to take care of. |
think it is also just good practice to continually look at them on an annual basis even to say this
last table where our averages compared to the people around us and then look at our fund
balances. Are we still generating enough? Take a quick look and if Conroe and Magnolia have
all of a sudden skyrocketed, is there something that we should be checking? Mayor
Countryman said anybody you ask, anybody here, we are always the most expensive water
around is what she hears all the time, but this is great to see because now I can say we just had
this study because you will see it on Facebook, you will hear about it. | hear that our water is
the most expensive. | have lived in The Woodlands and I did not pay this much for water.
Council Member Olson said where we are going to lose every time is when you deal with these

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 23 of 24



April Sounds and Walden because they are on their own muds. Mayor Countryman said those
are way more expensive. Council Member Olson said no it is not. He has a house in April
Sound. I can leave the sprinklers on every single day and forget about them and my water bill
at the end of the month is like $150 bucks. If I did that here it would be $1,500. | don't even
pay attention. | just turn the sprinklers on and they run. I literally had one spraying in the air
for who knows how long because | do not live there and one of the neighbors finally called
and said you have a sprinkler and every time your sprinkler comes on it sprays in our yard, and
it is across the street. | am like what is the water bill and my wife says it is like $90. He then
fixed it and it dropped to like $50. | said there you go there is $40 a month. Mr. Roznovsky
said when you use those examples with Walden, April Sound, and Montgomery, one of the
biggest drivers in this fee. So yes, Conroe and Magnolia are higher, but they have the SJR fee.

CLOSING AGENDA

3. Adjourn.
Motion: Council Member Donaldson made a motion to adjourn the Workshop Meeting of the

City of Montgomery at 6:36 p.m. Council Member Langley seconded the motion. Motion
carried with all present voting in favor.

APPROVED:

Sara Countryman, Mayor

ATTEST:

Ruby Beaven, City Secretary

January 13, 2025 City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes Page 24 of 24



